
 

 

 

December 2024 

Benefits  
Committee Meeting 
 

The image part with relationship ID rId8 was not found in the file.

Teacher Retirement System of 
Texas 
1000 Red River Street 
Austin, Texas 
78701-2698 



NOTE: The Board of Trustees (Board) of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas will not consider or act 
upon any item before the Benefits Committee (Committee) at this meeting of the Committee.  This meeting 
is not a regular meeting of the Board.  However, because the full Committee constitutes a quorum of the 
Board, the meeting of the Committee is also being posted as a meeting of the Board out of an abundance of 
caution. 
 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS MEETING 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AND 
BENEFITS COMMITTEE 

  
(Committee Chair and Members: Mr. Williams, Chair;   
Ms. Allred, Mr. Ball, Mr. Rutherford and Ms. Sissney)  

 
All or part of the December 5, 2024, meeting of the TRS Benefits Committee and Board of 
Trustees may be held by telephone or video conference call as authorized under Sections 
551.130 and 551.127 of the Texas Government Code. The Board intends to have a quorum 
and the presiding officer of the meeting physically present at the following location, which 
will be open to the public during the open portions of the meeting: 1000 Red River, Austin, 
Texas 78701 in the TRS East Building, 5th Floor, Boardroom.   
 
The open portions of the December 5, 2024, meeting are being broadcast over the Internet. 
Access to the Internet broadcast and agenda materials of the meeting is provided at 
www.trs.texas.gov. A recording of the meeting will be available at www.trs.texas.gov.  
 
 

AGENDA 
 

December 5, 2024 – 10:00 a.m. 

1. Call roll of Committee members. 

2. Consider the approval of the proposed minutes of the September 2024 committee 
meeting – Committee Chair. 

3. Receive an update and consider the following regarding TRS pension benefits 
program – Barbie Pearson: 
A. Consider recommending to the Board acceptance of the Medical Board 

Meeting minutes of September 2024 meeting; 
B. Consider recommending to the Board approval of Benefit Payments for 

September – November 2024; and 
C. Benefit Services Operations update. 

4. Receive an update and consider the following regarding TRS health insurance 
benefits program: 
A. Receive an update on the TRS-Care Retirees Advisory Committee (RAC) 

meeting held on October 31, 2024 – Nancy Byler;  
B. Consider recommending to the Board the appointment of a member to the 

Active School Administrator position on the RAC – Cristina Juarez; and 

http://www.trs.texas.gov/


2 
 

C. Receive an update on TRS-Care and TRS-ActiveCare health plans, 
including an update on TRS-ActiveCare annual enrollment and member 
and retiree engagement - Katrina Daniel, Meaghan Bludau and Cristina 
Juarez. 

 
5. Receive an update on Member Satisfaction Survey results – Sunitha Downing and 

Dr. Rene Paulson, Elite Research. 

 



1 
 

Minutes of the Benefits Committee  
September 19, 2024 
 
The Benefits Committee of the Board of Trustees of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas met 
on September 19, 2024, in the boardroom located on the Fifth Floor in the East Building of TRS’ 
offices located at 1000 Red River Street, Austin, Texas, 78701.   

Committee members present: 
Mr. Elvis Williams, Chair 
Ms. Brittny Allred 
Mr. Michael Ball 
Mr. John R. Rutherford 
Ms. Nanette Sissney 
 
Other TRS Board Members present: 
Mr. David Corpus 
Mr. John Elliott 
Mr. James Dick Nance 
Mr. Robert H. Walls, Jr. 
 
Others who participated: 
Brian Guthrie, TRS      
Caasi Lamb, TRS     
Don Green, TRS      
Amanda Jenami, TRS 
Barbie Pearson, TRS  
Katrina Daniel, TRS     
Heather Traeger, TRS      
Katherine Farrell, TRS 
Adam Fambrough, TRS 
Monica Bernal, TRS 
Suzanne Dugan, Cohen Milstein 
    
Benefits Committee Chair, Mr. Elvis Williams, called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.  
 
1. Call roll of Committee members. 

 
Ms. Farrell called the roll. A quorum was present.  

 
2. Consider the approval of the proposed minutes of the July 2024, Benefits Committee 

meeting – Chair Elvis Williams. 
 
On a motion by Ms. Sissney, seconded by Ms. Allred, the committee unanimously approved the 
proposed minutes for the July 2024 Benefits Committee meeting as presented. 
  



2 
 

3. Receive an update and consider the following regarding TRS pension benefits 
program: 

 
A. Consider recommending to the Board acceptance of the Medical Board 

Meeting minutes for July 2024 – Barbie Pearson;  
 
Ms. Barbie Pearson recommended to the Committee to recommend to the Board acceptance of the 
Medical Board meeting minutes for July 2024.  
 
On a motion by Mr. Ball, seconded by Mr. Rutherford, the committee unanimously voted to 
recommend to the Board acceptance of the Medical Board meeting minutes for July 2024.  
 

B. Consider recommending to the Board approval of Benefit Payments for June 
– August 2024 – Barbie Pearson; 

 
Ms. Pearson recommended to the Committee to recommend to the Board the approval of benefit 
payment for June through August 2024.   
 
On a motion by Ms. Allred, seconded by Mr. Rutherford, the committee unanimously voted to 
recommend to the Board approval of benefit payment for June through August 2024.   
 

C. Receive a Benefit Services Operational update – Barbie Pearson. 
 
Ms. Pearson provided information on the workload through July 2024 with verbal updates for end 
of year estimates due to the timing of the meeting and the end of the fiscal year.  She said as of 
August 31, the final numbers on retirements processed is a little over 26,000, a 15 percent increase 
over previous year. She noted the Benefits Estimate team created 89,000 estimates with a two day 
mailing average from the date of request. She reported $12.9 billion in annuity payments were 
distributed for FY 24, a 6.4 percent increase from 2023. She said there was a 1 percent decrease, 
28,000 less calls, which she attributed to the back office being current, creating less delays.  
 
Ms. Pearson said for the reporting employers telephone interaction increased 23 percent and a 3.4 
increase in emails. She reported the Senior Director roles were filled as of September 1. She said 
all vacancies will be filled by October or November. She noted the service level for this year was 
90 percent for retirements, 2 percent higher than last fiscal year. In response to Mr. Williams 
inquiry, Ms. Pearson reviewed the strategy to address the first quarter retirement requests which 
historically have spiked in September and October.   
 
Ms. Pearson concluded with changes to internal targets for fiscal year 2025. She said Benefit 
Estimates target was moved up from 90 to 95 percent in 31 days. For death claims acknowledged, 
she said, the previous target was 90 percent and will move to 95 percent in 14 days. The telephone 
calls answered was at 80 percent and she said it was moved to 90 percent within three minutes.  

4. Receive an update and consider the following regarding TRS health insurance 
benefits program – Katrina Daniel and Monica Bernal: 
A. Receive updates on TRS-Care and TRS-ActiveCare health plans, including an 

update on operations and customer service; 



3 
 

Ms. Katrina Daniel provided an overview noting the division they would highlight this meeting 
was Operations. She reviewed the extensive outreach efforts to retirees this year. She said the 
outreach is aligned with the Medicare enrollment period so retirees can make decisions about 
whether to remain enrolled, re-enroll or to drop. She reported there have been 22 retiree health 
fairs across the state scheduled and the attendance has been the best since 2017 when sweeping 
plan changes were made. She said they are also taking the opportunity to talk about the new dental 
and vision offerings which have been well received. Ms. Daniel reported there was an opening on 
the Retiree Advisory Committee with the nomination period open through November 4th.  
 
Ms. Monica Bernal reviewed Health Operations division. She said the Member Enrollment and 
Eligibility team focused on all of the enrollment, the day-to-day reconciliation and coordinating 
with the health vendors. She reviewed the Member Service Operations team that interact with the 
members educating retirees on all of the health benefits available and the necessary information to 
make informed decisions regarding health insurance. She said this team also supports the health 
fairs that are occurring right now, manning the booths talking to members.  The Member Ally 
team, she said, work the escalated issues that have complex health benefit cases. She covered the 
accomplishments in FY 24 for the Operations Division.   
 
There being no more business before the Benefits Committee, the committee adjourned at 11:08 
a.m. 

 
Approved by the Benefits Committee of the Board of Trustees of the Teacher Retirement System 
of Texas on December____, 2024. 

 

______________________________    _________________ 

Katherine H. Farrell       Date 
Secretary of the TRS Board of Trustees 



 
 

TAB 3 
  



Presentation Date: Dec. 5, 2024

Presented By: Barbie Pearson, Adam Fambrough and 
Jennifer Gasior

Pension Benefits



Agenda

1

3

Staffing

4

Member Services

5

Account Services

6

Benefit Operation Support

Accomplishments and Kudos

2 Member Transactions and Interactions

2



Benefit Counseling 
176

Benefit Services Administration
 3

Benefit Processing 
142.5

El Paso Regional Office 
11

Benefit Operation Support 
22

Benefit Accounting 
48

Staffing – Filled Positions

*Totals as of Oct. 31, 2024

Total Positions: 411.5
Total Filled: 402.5
Total Vacant: 9

3



Member Transactions and Interactions

973,636
Member 

Transactions

1,024,394
Member 

Interactions

54 Valid 
Complaints* 

(0.0027%)

September 2023 – August 2024 4*Complaints received directly from the surveys.



Member Services Organization Chart

Chief Benefit Officer
Barbie Pearson

Director
Member Education & Counseling - EPRO

Tony Pena

Director
Member Education & Counseling - HQ

Frank Washington

Senior Director
Member Education & Counseling

Yvette Carter

Senior Director
Contact Center
Scott Murphy

Director
Contact Center
Edgar Munoz

Deputy Chief Benefit Officer
Member Services
Adam Fambrough

5



Telephone Calls Secure Email Office Visits Presentations Group OV & Form Sessions

FY23 FY24

194

5,588

46,435 16,660 8,901 209695,754

Member Services

Secure emails
• 46,435 member 

emails answered

Telephone Calls
• 695,754 member calls 

answered

Office Visits
• 16,660 office visits
• 4,125 walk-ins Presentations

• 96 presentations
• 8,901 attendees

Group OV & Form Sessions
• 16 sessions
• 209 attendees

-1.9% ↓ 9.6%↑ 13.1%↑ 59.2% ↑ 7.7% ↑

42,376
16,188709,518

6September 2023 – August 2024



Member Services Objectives

Telephone Calls
Calls answered within three minutes 80% 97% 95%

Office Visits (Austin) Number of office visits available annually 20,000 6,436 22,758

Conducted

In-Person 1,446 5,494

Average speed of answer (minutes/seconds) 0:18 0:27

Live Video 1,175 4,635

Telephone 828 3,313

Walk-Ins 398 1,489

Office Visits (El Paso) Number of office visits available annually 5,000 1,984 5,851

Conducted

In-Person 454 1,621

Live Video 247 980

Telephone 197 617

Walk-Ins 542 2,636

90%

5,878

1,290

0:49

1,314

905

341

1,584

347

270

145

654

Business Activity Objectives
FY24 
Q1

FY24 
Q2

94%

5,670

1,537

0:27

1,291

952

384

1,344

411

277

165

645

FYE 24 
FY 

Target

98%

4,774

1,221

0:12

855

628

366

939

409

186

110

795

FY24 
Q4

September 2023 – August 2024

FY24 
Q3

7



Member Services Excellence

Ensuring Positive Member Interactions

Member Feedback 
• After Call Survey – 4.9 out of 5

• How Was Your Visit Survey – 4.9 out of 5

Employee Performance Management
• Quality evaluations

• Phone calls and phone counseling sessions
• In-Person Office Visit Observations
• Benefit Presentation Observations
• Planned – Evaluations of secure messages and virtual 

appointments

• Live Monitoring and Coaching

8



Member Services Initiatives

Improving the Member Experience

Regional Office Project
Redesigned automated phone system
New knowledge base
Automatic call summarization
Employer Engagement Plan
MyTRS

9



Account Services Organization Chart

Chief Benefit Officer
Barbie Pearson

Director
Benefit Calculations

Chad Nichols

Director
Member Accounts

Brooke Ledford

Senior Director
Benefit Processing
Adrea Bridgeman

Senior Director
Benefit Accounting

Mark Chi

Director
Benefit Accounting

Katie Tucker

Deputy Chief Benefit Officer
Account Services
Jennifer Gasior

10



Account Services

26,489
Retirements

89,474
Benefit 

Estimates

15,322
Claims

Acknowledged

20,417
Claims Paid

63,696
Refunds Paid 

$12.9 Billion
Annuity 

Payments Issued

September 2023 – August 2024

Retirements Benefit Estimates Claims Acknowledged Claims Paid Refunds Paid Annuity Payments Issued

FY23 FY24

71,79921,247
$12.1B

89,474 15,322
20,417

63,696

$12.9B26,489
78,048 13,896

19,524

36% ↑ 15% ↑ 10% ↑ 6% ↑-4% ↓ -11% ↓

11



Employer Customer Support

Employer Training Sessions Employer Training Attendees Telephone Service Email Employer Portal Chat

FY23 FY24

333
213,3674,772 11,711 216,766 38190

54
2,453

9,765

66.7%↑ 94.5%↑ 19.9%↑ 1.6% ↑ 14.4%↑

Employer Training
90 Sessions

4,772 Attendees

Telephone Service

11,711
Email

216,766
Employer Portal 

Chat

381

September 2023 – August 2024 12



Account Services Objectives

Business Activity Objectives
FY 

Target
FY24 
Q1

FY24 
Q2

Refunds
Refunds validated within five business days of 
receiving final deposit and all paperwork

95% 100% 100%

Benefit 
Estimates

Benefit estimates mailed within 31 days of 
request

90% 100% 100%

Retirements Retirees received first annuity payment on time 98% 67% 90%

Death Claims 
(acknowledged)

Claims acknowledged within 14 days of receipt 
of death notification

90% 99% 99%

Death Claims 
(payments)

Claims payments issued within 31 days of 
receipt of all required paperwork

95% 98% 99%

Reporting 
Employer

Regular payroll reports completed by the end of 
each quarter (cumulative for fiscal year)

90% 97% 99%

99%

100%

98%

99%

99%

99%

FY24 
Q3

100%

100%

96%

99%

99%

99%

FYE24

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

99%

FY24
Q4

September 2023 – August 2024 13



Account Services Surveys

Point of Service Survey for RE Presentations Reporting Employer Satisfaction Survey (RESS)

0

50

100

150

200

250

1 2 3 4 5

Refund Survey

Overall Satisfaction of online refund process

Ease of completing online refund application

370 total 
responses

Refund Survey

14September 2023 – August 2024



Inactive Accounts

Background

TRS is required to make reasonable efforts to locate and notify members with inactive accounts or, if appropriate, the member ’s 
heirs of their entitlement to a return of contributions.   TX Gov’t Code § 825.502

The board of trustees adopted the Inactive Account Outreach Policy on Dec. 7, 2021. Policy requires staff to provide an annua l 
update on outreach efforts.

September – December 
2023

• 21,751 letters mailed

Results

• $21,517,782 paid to 
6,507 members

15



Account Services Initiatives

PBT and Data 
Conditioning

Process efficiencies

Career path 
development

Develop, record and 
publish RE training 
sessions.

Develop additional 
training for Reporting 
Employers (REs) Improve RE resources 

and publications 
based on survey 
results.

Expand online retirement 
process

16



Benefit Operation Support Organization Chart

17

Workforce Management Training Quality Assurance

Senior Director
Benefit Operation Support

Deanna Degraw

Chief Benefit Officer
Barbie Pearson

Manager
Benefit Operation Support

Anissa Dungan

Benefit Services Coordinator
Documentation Coordinator



Foundational Training

• 8 Classes

• 87 Trainees
• 446 Knowledge-Base Updates

E-Learning

• 7 e-Learning

• 3 Micro e-Learns
• 84 Supplemental Materials

Quality Assurance

• 12,252 Call Evaluations

• 452 Virtual Office Visit   
   Evaluations

• 493 Recording Requests

Workforce Management

• 67,922 Schedules Produced

• 62,757  Schedule Changes
• 1,845 Real Time Adherence 
Occurrences

Benefit Operation Support

Foundational Training Trainees e-Learnings Quality Assurance Evaluations Workforce Management Schedules
Produced

FY23 FY24

-4% ↓ 32% ↑ 37%↑ 35%↑

18

8791

63

94 12,252

8,890

67,922

50,177

September 2023 – August 2024



Benefit Operation Support Objectives

Quality 
Assurance

Number of telephone interactions evaluated 5,000 3,160 12,2523,152 2,936 3,004

Foundational 
Training

Provided pension benefits foundational 
classroom training for all new hires (cumulative)

100% 100% 98%100% 96% 100%

Business Activity Objectives
FY 

Target
FY24 
Q1

FY24 
Q2

FY24 
Q3

FYE24
FY24
Q4

Number of virtual office visits evaluated N/A N/A 45297 207 148

19September 2023 – August 2024



Accomplishments

Benefit Accounting

• Issued one-time stipends and COLA to eligible annuitants as 
identified in Senate Bill 10. 

Benefit Operation Support

• Implemented Office Visit Evaluations for Member Education 
and Counseling.

Benefit Processing

• Completed FY24 Internal Refund Audit while maintaining 
service levels and receiving kudos from internal audit. 

El Paso Regional Office

• Developed and Implemented an Employer Engagement Plan 
for the Education Service Center (ESC) Region 19 area.

Member Services

• Increased the availability of virtual appointments.

20



Staff Kudos and Compliments

Member Services Account Services

Thank you so much for listening and finding ways to help. 
(Regarding new retirement download feature)

TRS was very professional, and each call was handled with honesty 
about my progress towards receiving my refund. I really appreciate 

the professionalism and straightforwardness.

It was very simple and easy to accomplish. I already received my 
check this past Friday. Much sooner than expected. Thank you so 

much!!

Great job! Quick and efficient process!

My experiences have been positive. My coach is great and always 
answers my questions in a timely manner. 

The counselor explained everything clearly and made it easy to 
understand. They were very good at helping soon-to-be retirees 
like me with the paperwork. The counselor was amazing at their 

job. I wish I could get them every time I called TRS.

The counselor was very helpful. They answered all my questions, 
and we filled out the packet together online. They were very 

patient, and I really appreciated them. I can enjoy the rest of my 
year knowing that all of this is done. They did a great job. Thank 

you so much!

The counselor was very patient and helpful. They not only helped 
me but also helped my sister and my wife. They took care of 

everything we needed and made sure we knew about things we 
hadn’t even thought of asking.

The counselor’s exceptional service needs to be acknowledged. 
They demonstrated exceptional customer service, were thorough, 
knowledgeable, and patient. I was struggling with making certain 

decisions, and they made things very clear for me.

21



MyTRS Demo

22



Questions

23



 
 

TAB 4 
  



TRS Health
Thursday, Dec. 5, 2024
Katrina Daniel, Chief Health Care Officer
Nancy Byler, Chair, Retirees Advisory Committee
Meaghan Bludau, Chief of Staff, Health Division
Cristina Juarez, Manager of Health Engagement

1



Health Agenda

• Update on October Retirees Advisory 
Committee (RAC) meeting

• RAC Appointment (ACTION REQUIRED)
• TRS-Care Update
• TRS-ActiveCare Update
• Health Engagement Update

2



Nancy Byler, Chair, TRS-Care RAC

3

October RAC Meeting Update



4

TRS-Care Retirees Advisory Committee (RAC)

TRS-Care RAC Meeting Update, Nancy Byler, RAC Chair – Oct. 31, 2024

Executive Updates and Health Care Updates

TRS-Care Operations and Engagement Updates

TRS-Care Dental and Vision Update

TRS-Care Medicare Plan Improvements



Cristina Juarez, Manager of Health Engagement

5

RAC Active Administrator Nomination 



RAC Position up for Nominations 

One RAC position open 
immediately due to 
retirement
• Active school administrator

Criteria
• TRS member/retiree
• Volunteer experience
• Credentials, awards
• TRS-Care participation 
• Geographic diversity
• Health benefits experience 

Evaluation and Appointments
• Evaluation matrix
• Interview with TRS Health
• RAC appointments at December

board meeting 

6

Nomination window: Sept. 10 – Nov. 4



• Active Administrator through Jan. 31, 2026.

7

RAC Nomination

Open 
Positions

1

Applications 
Received

8

Interviews 
Conducted

4



8

TRS-Care Update

Meaghan Bludau, Chief of Staff, TRS Health



9

TRS-Care Dental & Vision Enrollment Update*

Regarding
TRS-Care Dental 

and/or Vision

29K+ 
Calls 

Received 11,000+ 
paper 

enrollment forms

12,000+ 
phone enrollments

NEW!

20K+ 
Applications 

Received
22,000 

dental enrollments

21,000 
vision 

enrollments

43K+ 
Enrollments 
Processed

*Enrollment opened Oct. 1, 2024; data as of Nov. 10, 2024

Significant interest 
in new dental and 
vision plans

Retiree satisfaction with TRS health care services overall 
jumped by 26% in 2024. 



10

Limited Time Enrollment Opportunity (LTEO) Update*

3,100+

Calls 
Received

1,100+

Applications 
Requested

Growing enthusiasm in joining TRS-Care Medicare Advantage

*Enrollment opened Oct. 1, 2024; data as of Nov. 10, 2024



11

TRS-ActiveCare Update



12

TRS-ActiveCare Enrollment Update for Plan Year 25

Migration of TRS-ActiveCare Employees within 
Employers Participating as of September 2024

Migration of employees between August 2024 and September 2024 among districts 
participating for FY25. Image created with flourish studio.

• Total membership increased by 1.2% to 
424,000 in September 2024 due to 
change in employer participation

• Primary and Primary+ participation 
increased by 10 and 11%, respectively; 
82% of new enrollees chose Primary and 
Primary+ plans

• Reduction in participation in HD plan, 
TRS’ HSA-qualified high deductible plan

• HMO participation reduced by 93%: 
80% migrated to Primary/Primary+ 
plans, 5% migrated to HD, only 8% 
dropped

https://flourish-user-preview.com/19618147/IiMy6DPR5_NRM92FchuMpCZmJR9Sqyidk4ctKiTFISiyqW6fVr15M2um1Q7V6aH3/


TRS-ActiveCare: TRS Delivers an Affordable Product to Employers

13

$1,199 

$889 

$767 $90 

Cities/Counties

Nonparticipating Districts

TRS-ActiveCare Primary

Supplemental 
Funding

• TRS ActiveCare Primary costs 14% less than similar coverage in nonparticipating employers 
after premiums are reduced due to supplemental funding.

• With TRS-ActiveCare Primary costs at 4% less on average even without supplemental funding, 
TRS-ActiveCare is outperforming the market.

Effective data Sept. 1, 2024

Employers are choosing to 
remain in and join the plan:

• Last year (Plan Year 2024): 
Retained 99% of employers and 
100% of membership

• Current year (Plan Year 2025): 
Added 10 new employers, net 
increase in membership; 1 
employer with 4 campuses left



TRS Health continually analyzes factors that 
impact plan costs:

• Higher employee participation is 
associated with lower overall per member 
per month costs, as lower-cost members 
join the pool: 

• For every 1% increase in participation, per 
member per month costs are lower by 
$2.41 on average.

• The primary driver of participation is how 
much an employer contributes to their 
employees' health coverage:

• Every $10 more an employer contributes 
is associated with a 1% increase in 
participation.

14

Higher Participation Means Lower, More Stable Costs

$591 

$526 
$510 $498 

$463 $462 

$300

$350

$400

$450

$500

$550

$600

$650

50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

PM
PM

 C
os

ts
Employee Participation at District

Medical Per Member Per Month Costs
by District Participation

FY2024

Employer Contribution $225  $375  $450   $554    $654    $754



15

Affordability of Employee Contribution Remains a Concern

Employee + Child Coverage: 
In ESC Region 8, 72% of employees pay more than 

8.39% of salary for the lowest-cost plan

R1

R2

R3

R4

R5
R6

R7

R8
R9

R10
R11

R12

R13

R14

R15

R16

R17

R18

R19

R20

5%

36%

56%
20%

64%
43%

65%

72%30%

36%54%

27%

18%

27%

35%

43%

42%

7%

9%

14%

20% 40% 60%
R1 
5%

R8 
72%

• In plan year 2024, employees paid 20% of salary 
for family premium compared to 4% for public 
employees in the South. 

• Due to contributions, affordability is a major 
challenge for employees covering dependents: 37% 
of employees pay more than 8.39% of salary to 
cover children in lowest-cost plan.

• Minimum employer contribution of $225 was set 
in 2001 and today is not adequate to cover 
employees with dependents. 

• Supplemental funds limited gross rate increases 
below 10% on average in plan years 2024 and 
2025. TRS requested $450M in Legislative 
Appropriations Request to keep gross rate 
increases below 10% each year in FY 2026-27.

*Affordability threshold for 
health coverage under the 
Affordable Care Act was <8.39% 
of household income toward 
premium in 2024. Salary is 
closest proxy for income. 



The chart shows claims expenses as a 
function of total premiums charged for 
13 participating employers that 
requested claims data for the purposes 
of shopping.

• There is considerable 
variation in claims year-to-
year, regardless of the size 
of the employer.

• Employers outside TRS-
ActiveCare need to plan 
for claims volatility by 
purchasing stop loss or 
funding reserves – costs 
employers in TRS-ActiveCare 
do not experience.

16

TRS-ActiveCare Provides Stability for Employers

Claims in this 
range exceed 
premiums 
charged

Claims in this 
range are less 
than premiums 
charged

At 100%, 
premiums 
charged 
match claims

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

110%

120%

130%

140%

150%

160%

170%

180%

190%

200%

2022 2023 2024



Cristina Juarez, Manager of Health Engagement

TRS Health Engagement Overview

17



Understand and 
address needs 

and requirements 
of our 

stakeholders

Knowledge of 
health care 

industry with 
experience in 

managing health 
plan and benefits

Build long-term 
relationships and 
foster continuous 

engagement

Health Engagement Team: 
We aim to deliver targeted, timely messaging that inspires action.

Cristina Juarez
Health Engagement 

Manager

Jean Babin-Gibson
Sr. Health Engagement 

Specialist

Umme Salama Oan Ali
Sr. Health Engagement 

Implementation Specialist 

Sarah Farley
Sr. Health Engagement 

Strategist

18

Carly Yansak
Sr. Communications 

Specialist

Combined Experience
• Health Care: 
    71 years
• Communications: 
   79 years



Engagement Touchpoints

EMAIL

• TRS News
• Monthly issues of The 

Pulse e-newsletter
• UHC targeted emails
• BCBSTX targeted 

emails
• ESI targeted emails

11M
EMAILS

DIRECT MAIL

• Targeted letters
• Plan materials
• ID cards
• Custom mailers

1.6M
DIRECT MAIL 

PIECES

Timeframe - TRS-ActiveCare: Sept. 2023 – Aug. 2024; TRS-Care: Jan. 2024 – Oct. 2024

19

MEETINGS

• In-Person Health 
Education Fairs

• Virtual Webinars
 

PHONE/TEXT 

• Welcome calls by UHC
• Text messaging 

campaign by BCBSTX 
36K

PARTICIPANTS

WEBSITE
Pages with health care 
content on the TRS 
website as well as across 
our health vendors’ 
websites

860K
PAGEVIEWS

16K
ATTENDEES

14M
TOUCHPOINTS

TOUCHPOINTS
PER PARTICIPANT

22



20

History of Messaging Significant Health Matters

2016–2018:

Funding Challenges 
Overhaul TRS-Care 

• Risk of program closure
• Brokers drawing away 

retirees
• Continuous messaging 

to legislators and 
associations

• Restructured plans and 
revised rates and 
benefits

2019–2021:

SB 1444 & Regional Rating 
• Closed loophole for 

competing employer 
coverage  

• Moved TRS-ActiveCare 
from statewide to 
regional rating.

• Allowed districts 
flexibility to join/leave 

• Communicated plan 
liberalizations for COVID-
19 claims. 

2023–2024:

Onboarded New Districts 
• Allowed mid-year 

transitions 
• Onboarded 10 new 

districts
• Outreach to districts 

considering to opt out

2024-Present:

TRS-Care Enhancements
• Introduced new dental 

and vision plans for 
retirees

• Lowered premiums for 
Medicare retirees

• Offered limited-time 
enrollment for 
Medicare-eligible 
retirees.

Implementing vendor transitions every few years



21

Case Study: Messaging SB1444 & Regional Rating to Employers

Prior to 12/31/21
Updated website with 

latest information
Held in-person and virtual 

meetings with district 
leaders
 Attended and presented 

at conferences

2022 (first year 
districts could leave)
 Enhanced engagement 

through district 
ambassadors (DA)
Benefit Administrator (BA) 

trainings
 Exit interviews with 

terming employers
 Continued meetings and 

conference participation

2023
 Started quarterly Zoom 

calls with employers 
 Added Rx DAs to further 

outreach
 Initiated targeted email 

campaigns 
 Engaged nonparticipating 

districts
 Continued meetings, 

trainings and conference 
attendance

2024
Surveyed employers to 

gauge their interest and 
needs
Launched District 

Download newsletter
Resumed in-person BA 

trainings with a virtual 
option 
 Provided repackageable 

content for BAs
Implemented a new CRM 

tool 
 Began a website refresh 
Continued quarterly calls 

with district leaders

SB1444 passed in the 87th Texas Legislative Session

Increased 
employer 
engagement over 
the years, 
successfully 
demonstrating 
the value of TRS-
ActiveCare.

Joined: 1
Left: 114

Joined: 3
Left: 14

Joined: 10
Left: 1



Fund Balances

22

Appendices



23

Appendix: TRS-ActiveCare Fund Balance Projection Through 2027



24

Appendix: TRS-Care Fund Balance Projection Through 2027



25

PY 2024 TRS-Care Touchpoints

385K packets mailed to 
eligible members

147K subscribers to monthly 
health care newsletter

35 emails sent to 122K 
recipients (~ 1 email per week) 

45 in-person and virtual events 

with 13K attendees

650K website views 73K views on 9 videos



Employers Participants

26

PY 2023-24 TRS-ActiveCare Touchpoints

1500+ attendees for In-
Person & Virtual Meetings

8K engagements with 
district ambassadors

75 emails sent to 
employers

3K+ attended benefit 
webinars

3M emails sent

200K website views



 
 

TAB 5 
  



Presentation Date: December 5, 2024 

Presented By: Sunitha Downing, Director of Enterprise 

Program Management & Dr. Rene Paulson, Elite Research LLC

Enterprise Project Management



Teacher Retirement System of Texas

Member Satisfaction Survey

Rene Paulson, Ph.D.

December 5, 2024



Survey Process

▪ Administered by Elite Research, LLC

▪ Four-week collection in August 2024

▪ Online and phone survey

▪ Segmented on member status (active or retired), gender, age, and prior TRS contact within the last 60 
months from the Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system

▪ Population: 250,306 active members and 321,332 retirees

▪ Sample: 150,326 active members and 72,000 retirees

3



Overall Satisfaction

▪ Overall satisfaction with TRS consistent with previous years

▪ There was a minor decrease in retirees who reported being "Very Satisfied" in 2024 (42%) compared to 2023 
(46%) along with a slight increase in combined dissatisfaction ("Unsatisfied" and "Very Unsatisfied") from 
14% (2023) to 17% (2024)

4
Q: Please rate your overall satisfaction with TRS.

29% 30%

20%

8%
13%

1%

26%
32%

25%

7% 9%

1%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with TRS Overall (Active Members)

2024 (N = 7,280) 2023 (N = 4,349)

42%

31%

10%
3%

14%

0%

46%

31%

9%
3%

11%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with TRS Overall (Retirees)

2024 (N = 7,119) 2023 (N = 3,968)



Satisfaction with Service Timeliness

▪ Active members reported greater satisfaction (“Very Satisfied" and “Satisfied") with service timeliness in 
2024 (61%) over 2023 (52%)

▪ Retired members also reported greater satisfaction (“Very Satisfied" and “Satisfied") with service timeliness 
in 2024 (63%) over 2023 (58%)

5Q: How satisfied are you with TRS' ability to timely serve you, including the amount of time you wait for service in person?

30% 31%

17%

6% 5%
12%

22%
30%

23%

6% 4%

15%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with Service Timeliness (Active Members)

2024 (N = 5,577) 2023 (N = 3,723)

28%
35%

14%

3% 3%

18%
25%

33%

17%

3% 3%

19%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with Service Timeliness (Retirees)

2024 (N = 5,991) 2023 (N = 3,760)



Satisfaction with Staff

▪ Satisfaction increased on all staff items for both active members and retirees from 2023 to 2024 

▪ Friendliness is highest rating for combined satisfaction (“Very Satisfied” and “Satisfied”) for both active 
members and retirees in 2024

▪ Retirees rate Employee Courtesy, Knowledgeability, and Accountability higher in 2024 than active members

6
Q: How satisfied are you with TRS staff, including employee courtesy, friendliness, and knowledgeability, and whether staff m embers adequately 
identify themselves to customers by name, including the use of name plates or tags for accountability?



Satisfaction with TRS Health Care Services

▪ Increase in active members and retirees who rated “Very Satisfied” from 2023 to 2024

▪ Decrease in both active members and retirees who rated “Neutral” from 2023 to 2024

▪ Overall combined satisfaction (“Satisfied” and “Very Satisfied”) increased for retired members from 2023 
(53%) to 2024 (80%)

7Q: Overall, how satisfied are you with TRS-ActiveCare/TRS-Care services?

10%

39%

27%

14% 10%
6%

46%

34%

10%
4%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very Satisfied Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Satisfaction with TRS Health Care Services
(Active Members)

2024 (N = 898) 2023 (N = 447)

29%

51%

14%
4% 2%

19%

34%
40%

3% 4%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Satisfaction with TRS Health Care Services
(Retirees)

2024 (N = 1,135) 2023 (N = 1,116)



Satisfaction with Communications

▪ All members rated higher combined satisfaction (“Very Satisfied” and “Satisfied”) with all items in 2024 than 
in 2023

▪ Retirees more highly rated Toll-free Telephone Access, Call Transfers, Access to a Live Person, Email, and Text 
Messaging than active members in 2024

▪ In 2024, more than half of both active members and retirees rated as satisfied with all except for Text 
Messaging (30% and 33%) and Call Transfers (45% and 47%)

8
Q: How satisfied are you with TRS communications, including toll-free telephone access, the average time you spend on hold, call transfers, 
access to a live person, letters, email, and any applicable text messaging or mobile applications? 



Satisfaction with TRS Brochures

▪ Members ratings of satisfaction with TRS brochures maintained consistent from 2023 to 2024

▪ More retirees satisfied in 2024 (79%) than active members (65%)

9
Q: How satisfied are you with any TRS brochures or other information, including the accuracy of that information?

25%

40%

21%

4% 3%
8%

19%

43%

25%

4% 2%
7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with TRS Brochures (Active Members)

2024 (N = 5,543) 2023 (N = 3,902)

35%

44%

12%

2% 3% 5%

35%

44%

13%

2% 3% 4%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with TRS Brochures (Retirees)

2024 (N = 6,031) 2023 (N = 3,721)



Satisfaction with Internet Site
▪ New question in 2024, no ratings in 2023

▪ Most members found the internet site easy to use with combined satisfaction ratings (“Very Satisfied” and 
“Satisfied”) 70% and 80%

▪ Retirees (79%) rated information accessibility with greater satisfaction (“Very Satisfied” and “Satisfied”) than 
active members (69%)

10
Q: How satisfied are you with the TRS Internet site (www.trs.texas.gov), including the ease of use of the site, mobile access  to the site, information on the location of the site 
and the agency, and information accessible through the site such as a listing of services and programs and whom to contact fo r further information or to file a complaint?



Satisfaction with Complaint Handling Process 

▪ Fewer active members were satisfied (“Very Satisfied" and “Satisfied") with the complaint handling process 
from 2023 (52%) to 2024 (40%)

▪ More retirees were satisfied (“Very Satisfied" and “Satisfied") with the complaint handling process from 
2023 (18%) to 2024 (35%)

11Q: How satisfied are you with the TRS complaint handling process, including whether it is easy to file a complaint and whether responses are timely?

19%
21% 18%

8%

18% 16%
20%

32%

19%

6%
15%

8%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with Complaint Handling Process 
(Active Members)

2024 (N = 73) 2023 (N = 79)

14%
21% 17% 14% 16% 19%

6%
13%

19%

9%

31%
22%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with Complaint Handling Process 
(Retirees)

2024 (N = 81) 2023 (N = 32)



Satisfaction with Facilities

▪ Increase in active members and retirees who rated “Very Satisfied” from 2023 to 2024

▪ Decrease in both active members and retirees who rated “Neutral” from 2023 to 2024

▪ Overall combined satisfaction (“Satisfied” and “Very Satisfied”) increased for retired members from 2023 
(68%) to 2024 (77%)

12Q: How satisfied are you with TRS' facilities, including your ability to access TRS, the office location, signs, and cleanliness?

58%

26%

6%
2% 5% 4%

52%

30%

10%
2% 3% 3%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with Facilities (Active Members)

2024 (N = 653) 2023 (N = 390)

45%

32%

10%

1%
5% 7%

32%
36%

14%

3% 4%
11%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Very

Satisfied

Satisfied Neutral Unsatisfied Very

Unsatisfied

Not

Applicable

Satisfaction with Facilities (Retirees)

2024 (N = 290) 2023 (N = 180)



Actionable Insights

13

▪ Benefit Services
❖ Educate members on the availability of MyTRS and what actions can be performed using the site
❖ Consider multi-pronged approach to retirement with younger members who have high concentrations of individuals with 

low/limited knowledge of finances and retirement as well as pockets of knowledgeable individuals confident and actively 
investing beyond TRS

▪ Health
❖ Continue to educate Reporting Employers, active members, and retirees about the benefits of enrolling in the TRS Health 

plans, including the comparability to market-based plan alternatives
❖ Survey Reporting Employers to determine plan benefit priorities and provide insights into cost and benefit tradeoffs
❖ Highlight the value of health care plans/services and lesser known/utilized benefits in The Pulse and enrollment materials

▪ Communications
❖ Increase communication on retirement planning topics for active members
❖ Open up communications with members about their communications ratings and how TRS can listen more
❖ Improve website functionality, including retirement form access, beneficiary designation, and online identification for access
❖ Educate members on the availability of the TRS email subscription service, Subscribe!
❖ Focus on Employee Courtesy, Knowledgeability, and Accountability, and Complaint Handling with active members



14

Questions?


	Benefits Comm 3C-  Benefits Ops Update- 12022024 (1).pdf
	Slide 1:  
	Slide 2: Agenda
	Slide 3: Staffing – Filled Positions
	Slide 4: Member Transactions and Interactions
	Slide 5: Member Services Organization Chart
	Slide 6: Member Services
	Slide 7: Member Services Objectives
	Slide 8: Member Services Excellence
	Slide 9: Member Services Initiatives
	Slide 10: Account Services Organization Chart
	Slide 11: Account Services
	Slide 12: Employer Customer Support
	Slide 13: Account Services Objectives
	Slide 14: Account Services Surveys
	Slide 15: Inactive Accounts
	Slide 16: Account Services Initiatives
	Slide 17: Benefit Operation Support Organization Chart
	Slide 18: Benefit Operation Support
	Slide 19: Benefit Operation Support Objectives
	Slide 20: Accomplishments
	Slide 21: Staff Kudos and Compliments
	Slide 22: MyTRS Demo
	Slide 23: Questions

	Benefits Committee 4A - 4C RAC and Health Plan Update_final (4).pdf
	 
	Health Agenda�
	October RAC Meeting Update
	TRS-Care Retirees Advisory Committee (RAC)
	RAC Active Administrator Nomination	
	RAC Position up for Nominations 
	RAC Nomination
	TRS-Care Update
	TRS-Care Dental & Vision Enrollment Update*
	Limited Time Enrollment Opportunity (LTEO) Update*
	TRS-ActiveCare Update
	TRS-ActiveCare Enrollment Update for Plan Year 25
	TRS-ActiveCare: TRS Delivers an Affordable Product to Employers
	Higher Participation Means Lower, More Stable Costs
	Affordability of Employee Contribution Remains a Concern
	TRS-ActiveCare Provides Stability for Employers
	TRS Health Engagement Overview
	Health Engagement Team: �We aim to deliver targeted, timely messaging that inspires action.
	Engagement Touchpoints
	History of Messaging Significant Health Matters
	Case Study: Messaging SB1444 & Regional Rating to Employers
	Appendices
	Appendix: TRS-ActiveCare Fund Balance Projection Through 2027
	Appendix: TRS-Care Fund Balance Projection Through 2027
	PY 2024 TRS-Care Touchpoints
	PY 2023-24 TRS-ActiveCare Touchpoints

	2024 MSS Board Presentation FINAL (1).pdf
	Default Section
	Slide 1:  
	Slide 2: Teacher Retirement System of Texas Member Satisfaction Survey 
	Slide 3: Survey Process
	Slide 4: Overall Satisfaction
	Slide 5: Satisfaction with Service Timeliness
	Slide 6: Satisfaction with Staff
	Slide 7: Satisfaction with TRS Health Care Services
	Slide 8: Satisfaction with Communications
	Slide 9: Satisfaction with TRS Brochures
	Slide 10: Satisfaction with Internet Site
	Slide 11: Satisfaction with Complaint Handling Process 
	Slide 12: Satisfaction with Facilities
	Slide 13: Actionable Insights
	Slide 14





